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INCOME STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS

W KRB E

For the period ended 30 June 2011
EZ=201156A30H L HE

Compared with 1H2010
¥H2010F ¥ F

¢ Revenue*: RMB766.3 million
WA« ARM7186,6308 7T
e Contracted sales: RMB2,067.3 million
BHIHE « ARM20186,7308 7T
e Gross profit: RMB336.4 million
EF - ARKE31E3,6408 7T
e Profit attributed to shareholders: RMB373.1 million
IR ELFNE - ARBESE7,31087T

(-RMB1,277.6 million or -62.5%)

G AREE12187,7608715462.5% )
(+RMB1,054.1 million or +104.0%)
(AR 10185,4108 7154 104.0% )
(-RMB672.9 million or -66.7 %)

CR ARM6187,29087T5166.7%)
(-RMB147.6 million or -28.3%)

G AR 1184,7608 7T8428.3% )

Revenue

WA

RMB2,223 million

RMB'000
AR¥TT

2,400,000
---2,100,000
---1,800,000

ARH22(82,3008 7T

RMB6AB.millon ...~~~ .......| |g | |g }----Cran/00 MITon . 1,200,000
N = 60087

ARMERABORT| | pw| | (wa| |we]|. SF7EO600E — 900,000

,,,,,,, =" 600,000

[} : ,,,,, QN 300,000

w— 1t Half (" 1H") £

m— )nd Half ("2H") 5

Gross Profit

EF

RMB'000

ARMTTT

********************** RMB?G%WH\OW"'%\ygi;rﬂ%%%%‘"m = 1,200,000
ARM7(86,8008 T~ T 0 ----1,050,000

-- 900,000
-- 750,000
= 600,000

. KE#3f83,6008 T
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, = 450,000
-F=— 300,000

&N 150,000
0

— HLEE

— H T

Contracted Sales
BHHE

RMB'000
RMB4,204 million ARETFT
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ARBARA0BT 4,800,000
--4,200,000
""" 3,600,000
n
’7'0’0'§’7%63,000,000
————————————————————————————————————— 2,400,000

221,800,000
N F=1,200,000
L 8 600,000

0

m— HLEF

— T

Profit Attributable to Shareholders
% 3R PE Ak KU 57
RMB'000

ARBFT
RMB977 million

""""""" NG 70085~ 21,200,000

--1,050,000
900,000
5= 750,000

— HHE

— HTEE

* After 5.55% Business Taxes and Surcharges B Kk 25.55 % 94 254 K ff o0
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STATEMENT OF

As at 30 June 2011
7A201156H30H

FINANCIAL POSITION HIGHLIGHTS

BT TS AR R M2

Compared with the end of 2010
HH2010F £ K

e Shareholders” equity: RMB4,791.8 million
IR - ARMA47189,1808 7T

e Cash position*: RMB1,950.3 million
WaAR*  ARKE19185,0308 T

e Total debt: RMB5,204.9 million
1aEws  ARKES2(84908 T

¢ Net gearing ratio: 64.0%
SFEMELE : 64.0%

(+RMB224.4 million or +4.9%)
(A REE2182,4408 70504.9% )
(-RMB782.4 million or -28.6%)

(R ARMET7188,2408 71.5428.6% )
(+RMB425.1 million or +8.9%)
(A RKEAE2,51087T58.9%)
(+21.6 percentage points)

(38 h021.6M8 5 H2h)

Shareholders’ Equity
R

RMB’000
AR¥TT
4,800,000
---4,200,000
---3,600,000
---3,000,000
---2,400,000
---1,800,000
---1,200,000
- 600,000
L 0
30 June 2011
201146 A30H

RMB4,792 million

RMB4,567 million ARM47(89,20087T

30 June 2010
201056 A30H

31 December 2010
2010F12H31H

Total Debt
HER

RMB’000
RMB3,742 million RMB4,170 million

ARBTT
e MRW37E42008BT ARBAET00ET 4,800,000

4,200,000
---3,600,000

RMBT,650 flfioh

ARMEI6(E5,00087----------

RMB744 million
i

---3,000,000

2,400,000
---1,800,000
-1,200,000

600,000
0

]
u m [MB1,038 milion -

ARH10/E3 8008

30 June 2010
201056 A30H

31 December 2010 30 June 2011
2010128318 201146 H30H

| 0ng-term &} w— Short-term 2]

* Including restricted cash BIEF R HI3E &

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED

Cash Position
BEMRR

RMB2,733 million )\Q/gjgg
ARM27183,3008 7T o
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 2,800,000
RMB1,950 million
“REHE19185,000

--2,450,000
--2,100,000
---1,750,000
---1,400,000
---1,050,000

- 700,000

- 350,000
0

--RMB&75 erillion- -
_ARH6/57.5008 T

30 June 2010
201056 A30H

31 December 2010
2010F12H31H

30 June 2011
201156 H30H

Net Gearing Ratio
FEER

A2 Yo 500
400
300
200

100

31 December 2007 31 December 2008 31 December 2009 31 December 2010
20074F12H31H  2008%12A31H  2009%12A318  2010612A318

30 June 2011
201166A30R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IR W M oA

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the first half of 2011, the PRC property market was still subject
to stringent regulatory policies and credit tightening. We expected
the central government to carry on tightening its monetary policy
in the second half of the year as the effect of central regulatory
policies has gradually kicked in. The Group adopted flexible project
development and sales strategies in the first half of the year, thus
recording RMB2,067.33 million in contracted sales, representing a
growth of 1.04 times as compared with the corresponding period
of the previous year. In addition, during the period, leveraging on
the depression of the property market, we acquired 2 parcels of
land with the average land cost of RMB634 per sq.m. and the
aggregate GFA of approximately 700,000 sq.m..

Overall Performance

During the period, turnover of the Group was RMB766.27
million, representing a decrease of 62.5% as compared with
the corresponding period of the previous year. Gross profit was
RMB336.35 million, representing a decrease of 66.7% as compared
with the corresponding period of the previous year. As a result of
the change of product mix sold, the average selling price (“ASP")
of our properties decreased by 12.5% to RMB10,343 per sg.m.
and gross profit margin dropped from 49.4% of the corresponding
period of the previous year to approximately 43.9%. Since there
was a considerable decrease in GFA delivered, profit attributable
to shareholders recorded a decrease of 28.3% to RMB373.10
million. Basic earnings per share was RMB15.55 cents. Core
profit attributable to shareholders amounted to RMB8.47 million,
representing a decrease of 98.1% over the corresponding period of
the previous year. Core earnings per share was RMB0.35 cent.

Yuzhou Gushan No.One &l e &L —5%

“E2——FhlRE SMNEEROGBERQF

£ E)

201MF EHF - REEMEMSBKRATE
BRI M) BUR SR s B - PR BIZBUR
RIUR B R IR - Rt B P TE B P SR BT A
THFGEBHBNEREER - RNER LY
FIRIMT BEREERAEMEERE - 580
HEHL FFERBEATIM4EEARE
20186,7338 7T ° AN - HPILIE T FHE
MSEBE - AR ESEEESTE S
KARMBGI4TLIE AR L - BELEEE
708 F 7K -

BERHE

A AEENEEEAARETE6,6278
T BEFRIEATIE62.5% @ EFAARE
3183,6358 7T MEAFRM T T66.7% °
HREEENEE  BMEEWENTY
EETRI125%2FF 5K ARK10,343
T EMEBHEAFRBALN04% NEFEE
43.9%  RFRFELFE T E283% EARKE
31873108 7T - WIERZNYEBEmEAIR
1B TREATE - BIRERBN A ARKE15.55
7o REREIEIZLFEAEARESATE T
EEFRETR8.1%  BRIZELEFAA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Land Reserves

The Group possesses quality land reserves with low land cost.
As at 30 June 2011, the aggregate GFA of the Group’s saleable
land reserves was 5.49 million sg.m. with an average land cost of
approximately RMB1,486 per sg.m. and are located in six first and
second tier cities in the West Strait Economic Zone, the Yangtze
River Delta Region and Bohai Rim Region. The Group believes that
its land reserves currently held and managed are sufficient for the
future development for five to six years.

Yuzhou Gushan No.One &l e Sl —5%

BIRE S A o

+ i

AEEREEBEMERNO T HhREEE - R
20116 A308 - AEER T FEERA T8
EFEEMAESAOBF K FH AR
BFE KL ARE,4867T - DRI HNE
iR« R=ARERRDSLEERAN
B—=fHm - NEBRERAEFERER
IR ERARNEBRRAEANFHER

K e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IR W M oA

Saleable GFA of Land Reserves (sq.m.)

As at 30 June 2011

R=—ZE——F,A=+H

TibREN A HHEERERR (YK

Region GFA
HE EEEE
sq.m.
West Strait Economic Zone EAKERE
Xiamen EFT 2,464,491
Fuzhou &I 340,291
Quanzhou M 491,800
Sub-total NET 3,296,582
Yangtze River Delta Region REAEH
Shanghai & 600,374
Hefei AE 1,147,808
Sub-total INEF 1,748,182
Bohai Rim Region RPEBEBEE
Tianjin KE 449,793
Sub total NET 449,793
Total “Et 5,494,557

Saleable GFA of Land Reserves by City
R0 h 20 B9 1 3 fk 4 Y AT 8 ﬁé%i_ﬁﬁ%

8%

21%

1%

—_——=

“E2——FhlRE SMNEEROGBERQF

45%
® Xiamen &P

= Fuzhou f&/!

Quanzhou R/
B Shanghai /&
B Hefei A/E

= Tianjin K&

4
%~ —— West Strait

== Economic Zone
6% BRESHE

(60%)



During the period, the Group acquired 2 new parcels of quality —HiN - AL BB AREE R - BEE
land with an aggregate GFA of 703,218 sq.m., at an average E&/%703,218F /5K - T TR AKX IR
land cost of approximately RMB634 per sq.m., which is far below KR TIHKFE - BHEFHKARK634
the market price. The new parcels of land acquired are located in 7T * ZEFE AR R EF R EIN -
Shanghai and Quanzhou, and are expected to provide satisfactory ~ FBFF AR KRR B F AR EEIREMEND
returns to the Group in the coming years. W o

Particulars of these parcels of land are set out in the following T F&RHHFIZEFHIRAFFE
table:

Acquisition
Name of Project City Cost GFA Land Cost
HE BB T KE EBEEE mab: i) 5 %N
RMB’000 sg.m. RMB/sg.m.
AREETL,
AREFT Tk IR
West Strait Economic Zone EAKEEE
City Plaza Phase I* WMES—B*  Quanzhou R 166,000 491,800 338
Sub-total NEF 166,000 491,800 338
Yangtze River Delta Region R=A &
Jinshan site &R Shanghai _£/& 280,000 211,418 1,324
Sub-total NEt 280,000 211,418 1,324
Total #Et 446,000 703,218 634
* After the primary land development on this project, the Group * ZHMAAEEE TR TMAEE - BBAA
acquired it through public bidding and auction. FBRERS -

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED INTERIM REPORT 2011



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E AR T

Sale of Properties

The recognized sales and area sold of each project in the first half

YIZEIHE
TREHEEEB R2011F FEFERNER

of 2011 are set out in the following table: HESHENEE :
Average
Name of Project City Amount Saleable GFA  Selling Price
A E W
HEEH W ot | EBEmE FIHEE
RMB'000 sg.m. RMB/sg.m.
AR/
ARET T Tk 7K
West Strait Economic Zone BARKERE
Yuzhou Galaxy Garden HM e 2MIEE  Xiamen EFT 25,948 3,949 6,571
Yuzhou World Trade Center BN e HEEHE  Xiamen EFT 74,717 3,817 19,575
Phase | of Yuzhou University City &Ml © X4k — 8 Xiamen & 26,300 1,495 17,588
Yuzhou Gushan No. One HM e BIL—5%  Fuzhou &M 182,305 9,165 19,892
Phase | of Yuzhou BN e ®H Fuzhou &N 81,814 10,003 8,179
Oriental Venice BERT—HA
Phase Il of Yuzhou BN e®H Fuzhou &N 235,148 19,498 12,060
Oriental Venice BERT =
Others HAh Xiamen =P 8,403 3,889 21,607
Sub-total NEt 634,635 51,816 12,248
Yangtze River Delta REAREE
Economic Zone
Phase Il of Yuzhou Jingiao BN o £FBEIPE  Shanghai £ 997 86 11,540
International =4
Phase | of Yuzhou Skyline BN e RIE—H]  Hefei 5B 88,712 18,128 4,894
Sub-total NE 89,709 18,214 4,925
Total FEE 724,344 70,030 10,343

“E2——FhlRE SMNEEROGBERQF



Recognized GFA
BAHENEERR

Contracted GFA
(Sq.m

#

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 200,000
170,233
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 150,000
137,013
————————————————————————————————————————————— 100,000
70,030

—
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, “—----- 50,000

S = o

o o

ISY IS¢ N
|~ [

— HLYE

Recognized ASP
RREENFIIEE

ASP per sq.m

Property Sales* 1H vs. 2H
BRETHFDMEVYREE

RMB2,185 million

NS B
AR#21158,5008 7T RMB2,013

RMB724 million
TARWET7E2,4008 T

Recognized Sales of Properties Sold by City
Bp T O MNERYNEHEESE

12%

19%

W Xiamen EF9
[ Fuzhou @M
B Hefei &

69%

* After 5.55% Business Taxes and Surcharges B Kk 255.55% 894 254 & i 0

Yuzhou Oriental Venice &M o 877 g EHT

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E 5T R AT

During the first half of 2011, the Group recognized sales and area
sold were RMB724.34 million and 70,030 sg.m., representing a
decrease of 64.0% and 58.9% respectively as compared with the
corresponding period in 2010. The average selling price per sq.m.
decreased from RMB 11,823 in the first half of 2010 to RMB 10,343

in the first half of 2011.

The recognized sales and area sold of each project in the first half

R20MNFEXF - XEERRBEESHER
AREETE2, 4348 MERBEERES
70,030°F 75 K - 20104 B H#i & Bl T B&
64.0%K58.9% - MEF H K EENA
2010F E¥ FHWARK11,823T TR E
20114F EH¥FHARKE10,3437T ©

TREHZEE B R20104F £ FFHER

of 2010 are set out in the following table: HESEREE :
Average
Name of Project City Amount Saleable GFA  Selling Price
AHHER
HE&H EWH ot | EEEE THEE
RMB’000 sg.m. RMB/sg.m.
AR/
ARET T FH K 7K
West Strait Economic Zone BARKEE
Yuzhou Galaxy Garden SN e 2MIEE  Xiamen EP 232,669 34,714 6,703
Phase | of Yuzhou World BN o HHZEE  Xiamen EFY 126,897 7,071 17,946
Trade Center —H
Phase Il of Yuzhou World BN e HEHEE  Xiamen EFT 446,945 30,158 14,820
Trade Center —H
Yuzhou Golden Seacoast BN o FEFEEF Xiamen EFT 216,821 30,319 7,151
Others EAh Xiamen EF 37,735 6,318 5,973
Sub-total NEt 1,061,067 108,580 9,772
Yangtze River Delta REARERE
Economic Zone
Phase Il of Yuzhou Jingiao 2N e £FBEHEE  Shanghai B8 107,119 6,750 15,870
International =
Phase Ill of Yuzhou Jingiao BN e £FEPX  Shanghai £/ 844,575 54,908 15,382
International —Hj
Sub-total et 951,694 61,658 15,435
Total 4Bt 2,012,761 170,238 11,823
—E——EhEE BNEERGERLD



The contracted sales and area sold of each project in the first half

TRHTIZEEER201MF EFFNEL

of 2011 are set out in the following table: HESEREE
Average
Name of Project City Amount Saleable GFA  Selling Price
AT E R
HE EB W 8 EEEE FHEE
RMB'000 sg.m. RMB/sg.m.
AREET/
ARBFT IR TR
West Strait Economic Zone BAKERE
Yuzhou Huandong International &M ¢ IRFEIEX  Xiamen EF 382,815 53,502 7,155
(Phase Il of University City) (R —H)
Phase | of Yuzhou University City &Ml o K4 Xiamen & 42,898 1,962 21,861
—H
Yuzhou Castle above City BN o LI Xiamen & 322,881 19,777 16,326
(Diyuan Manor) (#oTIuE)
Phase | of Yuzhou B e A Fuzhou &M 13,803 1,520 9,083
Oriental Venice BT —HA
Phase Il of Yuzhou B e R Fuzhou #& M 318,760 20,031 15,913
Oriental Venice BEAT —H
Yuzhou Gushan No. One HM e BIL—5%  Fuzhou &M 204,680 10,267 19,935
Others EAh Xiamen EF9 94,460 16,147 5,850
Sub-total INEF 1,380,296 123,206 11,203
Yangtze River Delta REAREE
Economic Zone
Phase Il of Yuzhou lingiao B o £HFEFR  Shanghai F 5,128 182 28,224
International —Hf
Phase IV of Yuzhou Jingiao &M e £FFEBE  Shanghai £/ 343,087 16,058 21,366
International (Land Dream) POHA (B5E%)
Phase | of Yuzhou Skyline HBM e RIE—H]  Hefei 5 215,736 39,944 5,401
Phase Il of Yuzhou Skyline B e RIBEZH Hefei 58 123,080 20,071 6,132
Sub-total N 687,031 76,255 9,010
Total HET 2,067,327 199,461 10,365

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED

INTERIM REPORT 2011
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RN =R R

1H2011 Contracted Sales by City
BT DMHN201MF LEXFENHESH

16%

41%
B Xiamen EF

17% [ Fuzhou @M
B Shanghai L&
B Hefei &HE

26%

Yuzhou Golf M » SEX

14 —E——ShREE ENEERGERAD

1H2011 Contracted GFA by City
BET A MR20MNFELXFENHEREER

30%

46%
M Xiamen EF9

[ Fuzhou @/
B Shanghai £
B Hefei &8
8%

16%



During the first half of 2011, the Group’s contracted sales and area
sold were RMB2,067.33 million and 199,461 sq.m., representing
an increase of 104% and 126% respectively as compared with the
corresponding period in 2010. The average selling price per sq.m.
decreased from RMB11,475 in the first half of 2010 to RMB 10,365

in the first half of 2011.

The contracted sales and area sold of each project in the first half

R0VELEHF  AEBANHEESER

AR®20186,7338 T MA

AHEERE R

199,461F 1 K » 82010F R 8o 5l £ F
104% % 126% » MEBFHKEHHEEHTE
AIEF2010F E¥ R ARK11,47570 T
2201 FLE¥FHARK10,3657T ©

TREIIFEEBR2010F EEFHELD

of 2010 are set out in the following table: HESEREE :
Average
Name of Project City Amount Saleable GFA  Selling Price
AR ERN aR
HE BB W ox-Cl EEEE SHEHYE
RMB’000 sg.m. RMB/sg.m.
AREETL/
ARBTFT F7K K
West Strait Economic Zone BEKEE
Yuzhou World Trade Center BN e HERHEE  Xiamen EFT 108,302 5,473 19,787
Yuzhou Golden Seacoast BN  FEBEEF Xiamen EP 337,327 23,922 14,101
Yuzhou Galaxy Garden Sl e 2MIEE  Xiamen EFT 36,823 6,050 6,086
Phase | of Yuzhou University City & o KEZ3k—Ef Xiamen EP 42,488 6,822 6,228
Yuzhou Gushan No. One @M e FHIL—3%  Fuzhou @M 5,224 335 15,582
Phase | of Yuzhou Bl o T EEHT Fuzhou @M 72,007 3,375 21,336
Oriental Venice —H
Others Hh Xiamen & 27,231 4,871 55,911
Sub-total NEt 629,402 50,848 12,378
Yangtze River Delta R=EAKEE
Economic Zone
Phase I, Il and Il of Yuzhou BN o £FBEBE  Shanghai £/& 245,949 9,109 27,001
Jingiao International — k=M
Phase | of Yuzhou Skyline B o RIFE—HF Hefei 58 137,817 28,339 4,863
Sub-total INEF 383,766 37,448 10,248
Total HET 1,013,168 88,296 11,475

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED

INTERIM REPORT 2011
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AR RS

Profit attributable to shareholders IR SR FEAL R

Profit attributable to shareholders decreased by 28.3% from HMRAHTIERXEEERNKNRENE R
approximately RMB520.67 million for the period ended 30 June  RE(LFIEMREZE201096H30H IEEIE A
2010 to approximately RMB373.10 million for the period ended — #9 A K #5182,0678 7T 228.3% Z & &
30 June 2011 due to the considerable decrease in area completed 201146 4308 LA X AR E31E7,310
and GFA delivered in the current period. Core profit attributable to &7t ° B& B FEA5 1% 0 FE B R &L Z=2010%F
shareholders decreased by 98.1% from approximately RMB456.11 6308 LEHARI M 49 A R 4185,611E T
million for the period ended 30 June 2010 to approximately — 24*98.1%Z & Z201146H308 L HMAI4Y
RMB8.47 million for the period ended 30 June 3011. AR¥8478 T -

Profit Attributable to Shareholders
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Borrowings

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had bank loans, senior notes

g JE) -

BN

R2011F6 308 » REBMRITER ' &

and bonds balance of RMB5,204.88 million with maturities as B 2= M {E56HE A AREES52(84838 7T
follows: BT

Maturity 30 June 31 December

2011 2010

E;AH%FQ :g——ﬂi :?*gfﬁ

ANA=+H +=ZR=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARET T

Within 1 year 152 1,034,897 1,038,023

1 to 2 years 1824 515,500 294,400

2 to 5 years 2&E 54 3,389,484 3,142,347

Over 5 years HBiB5F 265,000 305,000

5,204,881 4,779,770

Debt Profile by Maturity
REPOMNEBAS

5%

6%

Bl Within 1 year 12"
Bl 1to2years 1225

B 2to5years 2E55
M Over 5 years #BiB5F

20% 22%
Bl Within 1 year 12 R
ey
10% Bl 1to2years 1225 6%
B 2to5years 2E5F
Il Over 5 years HBiB5F
65% y 66%

As at 30 June 2011 As at 31 December 2010
201156 H30H 72010128318

As at 30 June 2011, the bank and other borrowings of the Group
were RMB5,204.88 million and were secured by the investment
properties, properties under development, land use rights and
property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying value
of RMB7,638.05 million, and an aggregate of 504,000,000 shares
in the Company held by certain directors of the Company.

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED

R20119F6 308 + AEEBEMRITERM
HEib A ARKS2(8488E T * HAKE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB AR AT

Gearing Ratio

As at 30 June 2011, the net debt to equity ratio (total debt less
cash on hand (including restricted cash) and divided by total equity)
of the Group increased from 42.4% as at 31 December 2010 to
64.0% was mainly due to cash proceeds from contracted sales
were insufficient to settle the land lease payments and construction
expenses in the current period. We expect to see a considerable
decrease in this ratio in the second half of the year following
payment of most of the unpaid land lease payments, increase of
cash proceeds from contracted sales and more contracted sales
being recognized as revenue.

Net Gearing Ratio
FEELR

31 December 2009
20094 12R31H

31 December 2007
20074F12R318

31 December 2008
20085 12H31H

Investment Properties
Phase | and Il of World Trade Center (Xiamen)

The revenue of World Trade Center during the period was derived
from the mall and amounted to RMB17.62 million (30 June 2010:
RMB16.40 million), representing an increase of 7.4%. During the
period, the mall at Phase | of World Trade Center continued to
maintain high occupancy rate of approximately 100% (30 June
2010: 100%). The occupancy rate of Phase Il of World Trade
Center was 82% as it was still in the process of retail planning and
reallocation. We expect the occupancy rate of Phase Il of World
Trade Center will increase to the level of Phase | of World Trade
Center in the coming year. The mall not only managed to retain
the existing tenants but also has attracted new high profile tenants
of such renowned brands as PCD Stores and Walmart.
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Rental Income of Yuzhou World Trade Center

BN o HEERBEE WA

RMB12 million
AR¥#1,20087

RMB18 million RMB
ARH1,80087T AR
18,000,000

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 12,000,000

6,000,000

Yuzhou Golden Seacoast (Xiamen)

The project, Yuzhou World Trade Plaza (&)l o tH& 4 JEES), has
an area of approximately 40,000 sq.m. which comprises Phase |
and Phase II. Solicitation of retail tenants will be carried out in
phases. The plaza will be our commercial flagship in Hai Cang
District in Xiamen with large scaled complexes, supermarkets and
department stores.

Yuzhou Jingiao International Phase I, Phase Il and Phase
Il (Shanghai)

Yuzhou Jingiao International is designed as a one-stop commercial
complex with approximately 14,000 sqg.m. and features famous
brands. Business solicitation for Phase | and Phase Il, comprising
approximately 8,500 sg.m., had been carried out throughout 2009
and operation had now commenced. Business solicitation for Phase
Il was completed during the period, and rental income is expected
to be generated in the coming six months.

Hotel Operation

The Group continues to expand its hotel business in a sound and
prudent manner so as to achieve a diversified property portfolio.
We believe that the expansion into the hotel industry would widen
the source and stability of revenue, and reduce the risks of over
reliance on any particular real estate segment. The hotel of the
Group is still under development and construction. There was no
income generated from hotel operation during the period.

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AR RS

Property Management

The Group strives to create a warm and harmonious community
for our residences whilst delivering quality property management
services. The Group is committed to continuously improving the
living environment and enhancing service quality in its property
projects in order to maintain high level of customer satisfaction.

During the first half of 2011, the property management service
companies of the Group recorded property management fee
income of RMB22.10 million, representing an increase of 56.8%
as compared with the corresponding period in 2010. As at 30 June
2011, the aggregate GFA managed by the property management
service companies of the Group in the PRC was approximately 1.91
million sg.m., and these companies serviced more than 15,836
property owners.

Gross Profit

The gross profit of the Group decreased by 66.7% from
RMB1,009.21 million in the first half of 2010 to approximately
RMB336.35 million in the first half of 2011. The gross profit
margin slightly decreased from 49.4% in the first half of 2010 to
43.9% of the first half of 2011. It was mainly due to a decrease
in average selling price per sg.m. and increase in costs of sales of
the projects. The ratio of land cost to average selling price was
maintained at a low level of 13.4% and such ratio is expected to
remain at a low level in the coming years.

Gross Profit
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased by 6.19 times from approximately
RMB10.68 million in the first half of 2010 to RMB76.78 million
in the first half of 2011. It was mainly due to the recognition
of net gain on disposal of investment properties of RMB25.45
million during the period and the write-back of the over-estimated
acquisition consideration of approximately RMB35.07 million of
Phase IV of Jingiao International in the previous years.

Expenses on Selling and Distribution Costs

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased by 70.2%
from approximately RMB29.18 million in the first half of 2010 to
approximately RMB49.65 million in the first half of 2011. It was
mainly due to the increase in advertising and promotion expenses
by 5.9 times from RMB5.09 million in the first half of 2010 to
RMB35.20 million during the period; mitigated by the decrease
of commission expenses by 58.8% from approximately RMB21.20
million in the first half of 2010 to approximately RMB8.74 million
in the first half of 2011 due to the decrease in the number of
properties delivered in the first half of 2011.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by 77.0% from
approximately RMB48.02 million in the first half of 2010 to
approximately RMB85.02 million in the first half of 2011 was
mainly because the Group had recruited a number of experienced
personnel and thus increased the wage level, and also due to the
increase of management expenses as a result of the establishment
of branches in Tianjin, Quanzhou and Beijing.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

The following table set forth the components of the fair value gain
on investment properties for the periods indicated.

REMEA EWS

TERAHEHRATHRKREDENRIAE
W o

Six months ended

HEANEALE
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
—2——F —E-FTF
ANB=1H ~NA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBT T
The Mall at Phase | of Yuzhou Bl o B B —HRY
World Trade Center B0 11,601 5,000
The Mall at Phase Il of Yuzhou Bl o B B — HiRY
World Trade Center B L (23,012) =
Yuzhou Plaza BMES 294,889 =
Yuzhou Castle above City Bl o 3 I 28,225 =
Phase | of Yuzhou Jingiao International @Ml e £15 EIFE —Hf 8,000 -
Phase Il of Yuzhou Jingiao International &Ml ¢ £15EIFE — Hf 8,000 3,000
Phase Ill of Yuzhou Jingiao International @Ml ¢ £15 EIFE = Hf 243 78,078
Phase IV of Yuzhou Jingiao International @Ml e £ 1% ERE /Y HA 137,346 -
Phase | of Yuzhou Oriental Venice SN o B EEET—Ef (5,324) -
Phase | of Yuzhou Skyline Bl o K3IF—H] 28,567 -
Phase | of Yuzhou University City Rl o KEH,—Hf 2,785 -
Total HEt 491,320 86,078

Fair value gains on investment properties increased from RMB86.08
million in the first half of 2010 to RMB491.32 million in the first
half of 2011 was mainly due to retail and office segment of Yuzhou
Plaza and Yuzhou Castle above City, the business segment of
Phase | of Yuzhou Oriental Venice and Phase | of Yuzhou Skyline,
business segment and science research office building of Phase IV
of Yuzhou Jingiao International and the business segment of Phase
| of Yuzhou University City.

Finance Expenses

During the period, the total cost of debt of the Group was
RMB249.20 million, an increase by RMB185.55 million as compared
with the corresponding period in 2010, of which RMB175.25 million
were capitalised to cost of projects, an increase of RMB113.74
million as compared with the corresponding period in 2010. The
increase in finance expenses was mainly due to the increase in the
Group's total indebtedness from RMB2,393.04 million in the first
half of 2010 to RMB5,204.88 million in the first half of 2011.
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Currency Risk

The proportions of bank borrowings and cash balance of the Group

in terms of the following currencies:

B pe
AREERNRITERIIRSEHRNZEEE L
Bl

Bank
Borrowings,
Senior Notes and Cash
Bonds Balance Balance*
RITIER
SEEER
BEHae RE >
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETT
HK$ ok 830,772 345,566
RMB AR 3,130,897 1,598,157
us$ ETT 1,243,212 6,599
Total a5 5,204,881 1,950,302

Debt Profile by Currency
RE¥ S HNELES

159

24% 4]
W HK$ B
Bl RVB AR#

M us$ =7t
60%

L Including restricted cash 5 S8R 35 &

Operations of the Group are almost wholly conducted in RMB.
Apart from the cash at bank, senior notes and bonds balance
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group is not directly exposed
to any other material risk from foreign exchange fluctuations.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group provides buy-back guarantees to banks, which offered
mortgages to domestic properties buyers in the PRC of the Group.
As at 30 June 2011, outstanding buy-back guarantees amounted
to RMB3,375.50 million (31 December 2010: RMB3,205.72

million).

Cash Balance by Currency

BEWDHNREER

18%

H RVB AR
W HKS$ Bk

82%

REBIFE2UARBEETER © BRIAIMNE
FHEMRITER  SREREMEREHR K
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R o

HREE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Return on Equity [ &NEIE: ]

For the six month ended 30 June 2011, return on equity represented ~ 20119F L ¥ F R A M F E (b @ &K &
annualized profit attributable to shareholders of the Company  15.9% @ #Z2011F6HA30H LEXEA - K&
divided by the average of equity attributable to shareholders of ~ ZAREI¥RAFTE 7 EAFEARRRIBREREN
the Company at the beginning and end of the period. Annualised  FIERR LAHA) B2 AR 2N A & AR 3R FE (G 7 2 Y
return on equity in the first half of 2011 was 15.9%. FHE o

Earnings Per Share BRER

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit EREAREBNNAE T EZRARARIREES
attributable to shareholders of the Company by the weighted — FUERRAHIAE 2175 @ARINETHEE -
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period.

Six months ended

BEAEAL
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
—EB——F —T-ZF
NA=t+H ~NA=+H
Profit attributable to shareholders of PAYNSI & p IV
the Company (RMB’000) (AR®FT) 373,101 520,666
Less: fair value gains of investment B RIEERRIRE M
properties, net of deferred 2AnERE(ARETT)
tax (RMB’000) 368,490 64,558
Plus: fair value loss of warrants N RAEE A EEE
(RMB’000) (AR®EFT) 3,862 -
Core profit attributable to A BIR R FE(R 20 F
shareholders of the Company (AEBTT)
(RMB’000) 8,473 456,108
Weighted average number of BETE BRI T8
ordinary shares in issue ("000) (ATF3T) 2,400,000 2,400,000
Basic earnings per share BRERBI(BRARES)
(RMB cents per share) 15.55 21.69
Core earnings per share BRZLBF(BRARES)
(RMB cents per share) 0.35 19.00

\

Yuzhou Huandong International &N ¢ 3IRE BT Indoor of Yuzhou Huandong International
B o IRREIFRERN
———FhfiRE BSNBEROGERAF



No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amount presented for the period ended 30 June 2011 in respect
of a dilution as the impact of the warrants outstanding had
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amount
presented. As the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during the period ended 30 June 2010, diluted earnings
per share was the same as basic earnings per share. The core
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company is the profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company excluding fair value
gains on investment properties net of deferred taxation and adding
back fair value loss of warrants.

Commitment

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had commitment in respect
of development expenditure on real estate of approximately
RMB1,496.66 million (approximately RMB1,393.97 million as at
31 December 2010). The Group is also committed to the payment
of land premium in respect of land acquisition of approximately
RMB110.70 million (approximately RMB1,698.00 million as at 31
December 2010).

Human Resources

The Group is led by an experienced and professional management
team. Since the establishment of the Group in 1994, the Group
has been undergoing rapid development and expansion under
the leadership of the Board. Senior management has on average
16 years experience in properties development industry and
over 10 years experience for most of the senior executives.
The Group has also recruited overseas talents with professional
qualifications to join our management team. With the strong
leadership and international insight of the management as well
as effective execution, together with our strict implementation of
the international best practice according to the actual situation of
the Company, the Group has within a short period of time become
one of the strongest real estate developers in the PRC.

We believed that the competence of the Group’s human resources,
particularly the senior executives and professional project
management team, is of critical importance to maintaining the
strong competitive strengths of the Group. The Group aims to
achieve and exceed the international standard of outstanding
performance through compliance with the international best
practice in respect of strict management system and corporate
governance. As at 30 June 2011, the Group had a total staff
of 1,314.

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED
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OUTLOOK AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES

In the first half of 2011, the central government’s determination to
rein over the PRC property market will not be loosened. Therefore,
we expect that both the regulatory control over the PRC property
market and the grant of bank facilities will remain stringent
during the second half of 2011. Given the market concern that
the regulatory control will continue for a period of time and a
substantial addition to market supply during the second half of
the year, we expect that the price and sell-through rate in the
PRC property market will be affected to some degree. Against the
backdrop where the central government is combating inflation,
the Group will encounter a number of difficulties in reaching our
sales targets in the short run. Nevertheless, we remain confident
of the PRC property market and will adopt flexible pricing and
sales strategies for projects in various regions.

As the Group has a number of saleable properties in regions which
are not subject to the “Purchase Limit Policy” during the second
half of 2011, the demand for self-use properties remained strong,
hence we will speed up the roll-out of properties in these regions.
In addition, it is expected that four new projects will be launched
in Xiamen region in the second half of 2011, namely Yuzhou Golf
(BN o SEIX), Yuzhou Shoreline (Filll  E&), Yuzhou Sunshine
Garden (Bl o B5Y¢/EM) and Yuzhou Pacific Creek Uptown (&
N e SRR H ), with an aggregate saleable GFA of approximately
280,000 sqg.m.. We are confident that our leading position in the
residential market share of Xiamen will be further consolidated.

For the mid-to-long term, upholding our philosophy of “Building a
city with sincerity, constructing homes with love” (VAFBZEYS » IAE
£2%%), we will continue to conduct our business with integrity and
utilize our brand name and resources, to strengthen our market
leadership in the West Strait Economic Zone, progressively expand
our presence in the economic zone of Yangtze River Delta Region
and further intensify our penetration in the Bohai Rim Region, so
as to achieve the Group's objective of the business development
of the Group nationwide.
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We will continue to identify suitable projects with ideal returns
in line with the needs of business development of the Group. On
the other hand, we will seize market opportunities to replenish
our high-quality land reserves in a timely manner. It is envisaged
that the West Strait Economic Zone will remain as the key region
for our future development, with the proportion in land reserves
at or above 50%. For areas outside the West Strait Economic
Zone that we have gained a foothold in, we will appropriately
allocate resources to increase local land reserves and to develop
the Group’s brand equity, with an ultimate aim to solidify our
presence in the region.

With urbanization continuously pushing the property market
forward, we believe that the property market outlook in the PRC
will continue to be positive. The regulatory policy annexed by the
government is aimed to cool the overheated property market,
which is in turn conducive to the healthy development of the entire
property market. Therefore, we believe that with the execution of
effective strategies we can achieve the annual target of contracted
sales.

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED

HABREEENERFEZRERES
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SUMMARY OF LAND BANK
T R EE AR R

Total GFA GFA Held
Unit Land Total GFA Under  for Future
Projects Site Area Location Cost  Address Completed Development Development
BRI BEE  BERE
1EH EER wE  BESE i AEZER 2 BEER  EEER
(sg.m.) (RMB/sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.)
(K] (%/FHK) FK) (K (ERR)
Completed Projects
BRIER
Yuzhou Overseas City 27,703 Xiamen 830 North of the Junction of 239,627 - -
BilvEGESN EF Hexiang West Road and Hubin
West Road, Siming District
BHEREAR
ERERBRRZ XL
Yuzhou Shuilian Manor 12,909 Xiamen 910 West of Jinshang Road North 29,126 - -
BifferkEILE B S rIEILARAR
Yuzhou Hai Tian Plaza 6,316 Xiamen 396 Xiagang Yongfugong, 65,104 - -
BlvSRES g Siming District
BHEEBKES
Yuzhou Harbour City 20,089 Xiamen 761 Hubin North Road, 191,649 - -
Billemgi EF Siming District
BHEDELR
Yuzhou New City 25,610 Xiamen 647 Haotou, Dongdu, Huli District 93,473 - -
BN g NEEREER
Yuzhou Garden 27,345 Xiamen 586 Jinshang Road, Huli District 92,888 - -
SR =t HER S HE
Yuzhou Galaxy Garden 26,367 Xiamen 1,718 Fanghu, Huli District 93,925 - -
SNEMER B BB
Yuzhou New Manor 45,619 Xiamen 493 No. 414-417, Nanshan Road, 118,892 - -
BN B Huli District
HMERFWGEAL-MTSR
Yuzhou World Trade Center 19,454 Xiamen 845  No.75, Xiahe Road 204,476 - -
Biffett ey B BRETSH
Yuzhou Golden Seacoast 70,793 Xiamen 1,611 West of Xinggang Road, 245,073 - -
BilvEGSER P Haicang District
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Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA

BUECERRER BNEREREEE
Sold and

Total Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for Interest
Saleable Total Sold  Saleable  Saleable Unsold Held for Investment Land in the Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale only Only  Reserve Project GFA
ang #EE BEERX  BEARR BRE A EB
BRYEE BEYER EBYER FEEER FREEE REER  BEHE  BERE  1u#E  ERth BEER
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%) (sq.m.)

(FK) Bk (Fpk)  (Fnx)  (F0K) (¥R (FAK)  (FX)  (F7K) (%) (Frx)

239,627 236,745 235,644 235,644 = 1,101 S 1,101 1,101 100% 1,101
29,126 27,325 21,325 27,146 179 - = = 179 100% 179
65,104 64,575 62,250 62,250 S 2,325 1,464 861 2,325 100% 2,325

191,649 186,013 186,013 186,013 = = - - - 60% =
93,473 90,770 86,826 86,730 9% 3,944 262 3,682 4,040 100% 4,040
92,888 92,119 89,904 89,684 280 2,155 463 1,692 2,435 100% 2,435
93,925 91,689 87,053 84,017 3,036 4,636 4,636 = 1,672 100% 1,672

118,892 118,652 118,590 118,590 - 62 62 - 62 100% 62

204,476 182,640 118,712 108,368 10,344 63,928 14,828 49,100 14,272 100% 74,272

245,073 223,679 174,307 172,183 2,124 49,372 17,722 31,650 51,49 100% 51,496
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SUMMARY OF LAND BANK
T R EE AR R

Total GFA GFA Held
Unit Land Total GFA Under  for Future
Projects Site Area Location Cost  Address Completed Development Development
BRI BEE  BERE
1BH EER wE  BESE i AEZER  BEER  BEER
(sg.m.) (RMB/sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.)
(%) (%/FhK) 5K (K (R
Projects Under Development
ERER
Yuzhou University City 90,750 Xiamen 949 Tongji Road, Xike Town, 231,404 248 848 -
Bl X2 EM Tongan District
FZEAMERER
Yuzhou International Hotel 60,018 Xiamen 1,175 East of Huli Avenue, - 125,221 -
BileEIR RS B South of Huandao East
Road, Huli District
MERBEBRBIE
RERENR
Yuzhou castle above City 52,715 Xiamen 1,609 Fanghu, Huli District - 193,767 -
Mo L g ARG
Yuzhou Square 3333 Xiamen 2,417 North of Minggong Building, - 60,251 -
BNES EM Hubin South Road,
Siming District
BB EEREEARILE
Yuzhou Golf 55,986 Xiamen 1,490 Maging Road, Haicang District, - 89,956 -
Bilvm@AXx g Xiamen City
EfmERRE 5%
Yuzhou Shoreline 107,622 Xiamen 3,436 Area of 05-11, East of
BifleBiE EM Xinggang Road and North of - 473,184 -
Jiaosong Road, Haicang District
BRE0S-11HE
FABUR - BRI
Yuzhou Sunshine Garden 22,868 Xiamen 1,585  North of Wulv Road, West of - 59,290 -
Bl EF Tongsheng Road, Tongan
Industrial Zone
Rz IEEHRERER
bl R
Yuzhou Jingiao International 49,738 Shanghai 1,242 No.333 Jingang Road, Pudong 164,541 69,943 -
Bifle2BER i New Area, Shangha
ERRHE 23335
Yuzhou Skyline 446,757 Hefei 377 West of Songlin Road, Northeast of
BilleXsz AL Planning Road, Ranfang Village, 77,843 473,240 679,176
Taohua Town, Feixi County
R R LA
SHEIBARILE] - IPRSA AT
Yuzhou Oriental Venice 706,397 Fuzhou 2,568 Longjiang Village, Chengmen Town, 97,452 47,502 220,558
BNEAREE = Cangshan District
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Total Sold Saleable GFA

Total Unsold Saleable GFA

BUECERRER BNEREREEE
Sold and
Total Delivered  Pre-sold Total Held for Interest

Saleable Total Sold  Saleable  Saleable Unsold  Held for Investment Land in the Attributable

Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale only Only  Reserve Project GFA
ang #EE EBEERXR BEXR BRE A ER

BRYEE BEYER EBYER FEEER FREEE REER  BEHE  BERE  1u#E  ERth BEER
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%) (sq.m.)
(Frx)  (Epx) (EaR) (AR (FAK)  (FAK) (B8 (F5K0  (F5K) (%) (AR
480,252 458,621 316,070 192,754 123,316 142,551 135,455 7,096 265,867 100% 265,867
125,221 102,142 - - - 102,142 - 102,142 102,142 100% 102,142
193,767 189,222 88,178 - 88,178 101,044 85,889 15,155 189,222 98% 185,438
60,251 57,861 - - - 57,861 - 57,861 57,861 100% 57,861
89,956 89,956 - - - 89,956 89,956 - 89,956 100% 89,956
473,184 436,526 - - - 436,526 422,126 14,400 436,526 100% 436,526
59,290 58,535 - - - 58,535 58,535 - 58,535 100% 58,535
234,484 230,955 148,099 128,864 19,235 82,856 29,776 53,080 102,091 100% 102,091
1,230,259 1,222,859 141,656 75,051 66,605 1,081,203 983,903 97,300 1,147,808 100% 1,147,808
365,512 355,431 123,928 85,968 37,960 231,503 215,770 15,733 269,463 80% 215,570

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED
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SUMMARY OF LAND BANK
TR IE AR

Total GFA GFA Held
Unit Land Total GFA Under  for Future
Projects Site Area Location Cost  Address Completed Development Development
BRI BEE  RBERE
1BH EER wE  BESE i AEZER  BEER  EBEER
(sg.m.) (RMB/sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.)
(%) (%/FHK) 5K (K (R
Yuzhou Gushan No. One 234,160 Fuzhou 1,831 Niushan Village, Yangli, 9,165 78,411 -
BiflestL—5%: e Gushan Town, Jinan District
BREHLEF BE LA
Projects Held for Future Development
BEARER
Yuzhou F1 Plaza 15,652 Xiamen 3,087 South of West Liangian Road, - - 97,200
Eillor1E5 EF West of Yundingzhong Road
EREEEE - EERRA
Yuzhou Central Coast 123,240 Xiamen 2,557 Area of 11-10, East of Xingbin Road - - 700,000
Billeh 5 EM and North of Xingdong Road,
Jimei District
EXBN-10REAERRE
BRELE
Yuzhou Pacific 284414 Xiamen 1,696 Area of 12-07, North of - - 512,600
Creek Uptown EF Movie & TV City, South
BilleZsRmn Wuxian Area, Tongan District
AZR12-07RERAE
FARMILA
Yuzhou Kanggiao 12,955 Shanghai 3,554 No 1033, Kanggiao Road, - - 49,241
BillegiE L Kanggiao Town, Shanghai
LERRERER1033%
Yuzhou Commercial Plaza 40,911 Shanghai 2,367 No 9868 Hunan Road, Nanhui - - 110,460
SRS 2 i Industrial Park, Pudong
New Area, Shanghai
PERRAREETIRR
TR 08685
Yuzhou Financial Tower 6,818 Shanghai 2,616 Qiu 3/6, Qiu 2, No 9 Street, - - 28,670
BilveBARE L Jingiao Export Processing Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai City
LEmERMESRLO
MIE9EH3I6E 28
Yuzhou Lin'gang Center 50,628 Shanghai 1,444 Site A0403, College Community, - - 99,663
Bl eBgim L i} Lingang New Town, Shanghai
FRREEER B
A040333%
Jinshan Site 174,814 Shanghai 1,324 Site 2988, North of Tingfeng Road, - - 211,418
Eallpiin] I Zhujing Town, Jinshan District,
Shanghai
LETRLERSESHE
NEIE2988%: sk
———FhfiRE SNBEROGERAF



Total Sold Saleable GFA

Total Unsold Saleable GFA

BNECERRER BNEREREEE
Sold and
Total Delivered  Pre-sold Total Held for Interest

Saleable Total Sold  Saleable  Saleable Unsold  Held for Investment Land in the Attributable

Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale only Only  Reserve Project GFA
ang BEE BEERXR BEXR BxE A ER

BREEE BYER EBRER FEYER FREEE REER  BEHE  BERE 1u#E ERth BEER
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%) (sq.m.)
(Frx)  (Epx) (EaR) (AR (FAK)  (FAK)  (F5K)  (F5K0  (FAK) (%) (AR
87,576 79,993 32,817 9,165 23,652 47176 47176 - 70,828 60% 42,497
97,200 73,200 - - - 73,200 73,200 - 73,200 100% 73,200
700,000 535,000 - - - 535,000 510,000 25,000 535,000 100% 535,000
512,600 512,600 - - - 512,600 432,100 80,500 512,600 100% 512,600
49,241 49,241 - - - 49,241 49,241 - 49,241 100% 49,241
110,460 110,460 - - - 110,460 - 110,460 110,460 100% 110,460
28,670 28,670 - - - 28,670 28,670 - 28,670 100% 28,670
99,663 98,494 - - - 98,494 63,217 35,277 98,494 100% 98,494
211,418 211,418 - - - 211,418 211,418 - 211,418 100% 211,418
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SUMMARY OF LAND BANK
T R EE AR R

Total GFA GFA Held
Unit Land Total GFA Under  for Future
Projects Site Area Location Cost  Address Completed Development Development
BRI BEER  RERE
1EH EER wE  BESE i AEZER  BEER  BEER
(sg.m.) (RMB/sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.)
(FHX) (/Fhk) (Frk)  (FAK) (F75%)
Tianjin Tuanbo Site 126,027 Tianjin 896  Commercial Site 2010-48 and - - 179,450
REE RS PN Residential Site 2010-49,
Tuanbo Area, Tianjin
REERRE2010-48F %
35%2010-49E 153
Yuzhou Zunfu 135,173 Xiamen 1,246 South of Beihua Road, East of - - 270,343
BT X2 Guihua Chunxi Avenue,
Jinghai New Town, Tianjin City
REE SR ERRH -
REBRERH
Yuzhou City Plaza Phase |~ 125,000 Quanzhou 338 South New Zone of Huian County, - - 491,800
BMvEmES 4 M Quanzhou
FMTER SR AR
Total 3,814,781 1,954,638 1,919,613 3,650,579
El
Projects with Primary Land Development Qualification
BE-RtuEREEmEn
Yuzhou City Plaza 781,413 Quanzhou NA No 1 Yingbin Avenue, Chengnan
BilemES FM Industrial Zone, Huian
BRHBIXE
DENER
Yuzhou Beijing Project 1,946,676 Beijing NA  Within the Planning Area in
Billelt RER IR Mafang Town, Pinggu
District, Beijing
IRTARSHEREER
Total 2,728,089
i
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Total Sold Saleable GFA Total Unsold Saleable GFA

BUECERRER BNEREREEE
Sold and

Total Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for Interest
Saleable Total Sold  Saleable  Saleable Unsold  Held for Investment Land in the Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale only Only  Reserve Project GFA
anE #EE EBEERXR BEXR BRE A ER
BRYEE BEYER EBYER FEEER FREEE REER  BEHE  BERE  1u#E  ERth BEER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%) (sq.m.)

(FK) Bk (Fpk)  (Fnx)  (F0K) (¥R (FAK)  (FX)  (F7K) (%) (Frx)

179,450 179,450 = = = 179,450 179,450 = 179,450 100% 179,450
270,343 270,343 - - = 270,343 270,343 = 270,343 100% 270,343
491,800 491,800 - 3 = 491,800 491,800 - 491,800 100% 491,800
1524830 7,156,984  2,037432 1,662,427 375,005 5,119,552 4,417 462 702,090 5,494,557 5,408,549
1,746,200 1,746,200 = - - 1,746,200 1,746,200 - 1,746,200 100% 1,746,200
1,946,676 1,946,676 - - - 1946676 1,946,676 - 1,946,676 100% 1,946,676
3,692,876 3,692,876 = = - 3692876 3,692,876 - 3,692,876 3,692,876
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OTHER INFORMATION

H &t

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 30 June 2011, the interests of the directors in the share capital
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers,

were as follows:

EENROEDR

R2011F6H30H + EERAR A=k EAFE
ZE(EERBHFMPERA(TFAERRAE
1B 1) EXVER) B AR AR #EA SRR AR
AIIRIEE S R BRI E352HEBEFENE
fft - BB EMETAZESETELRRS
RRESFRIZEAE AR R BRI ER
U

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: REQNREBERNEFR -
Percentage of
Directly the Company’s
beneficially Through issued share
Name of director Notes owned spouse Total capital
EARRAH
B2 BITRA
EEpE ok EERERER EBERE et HEDH
Mr. Lam Lung On MEEZRHE (@) 900,000,000 900,000,000 1,800,000,000 75.0
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan FERE L (@) 900,000,000 900,000,000 1,800,000,000 75.0

(a) Ms. Kwok Ying Lan and Mr. Lam Lung On are married to each other.

Save as provided above, none of the directors have any interests in
the share capital of the Company or its associated corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS
IN SHARES

At 30 June 2011, the interests of relevant persons (other than the
directors of the Company) in the share capital of the Company,
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of SFO, were as follows:

FERRORGED

R2011F6 4308 @ RIEFHLAEKNIZE
336IEFEM AP FTeiRmEzRS - BEA
T(BRARRESIN RARFIRAF R
R

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: REQNFEBERNEFR .
Percentage of
the Company’s
Name of shareholders Notes Others Total issued share capital
EARARE
BEEpE iE Hith @t BOTRANESHL
China Life Insurance (Group) ~ HEBIAZRE (£E) €) 526,795,000 526,795,000 21.95
Company NS
China Life Insurance (Overseas) # B AZRK(FIM) (@) 526,795,000 526,795,000 21.95
Company Limited B ER AT
China Life Trustees Limited FEASEEERAA (@) 526,795,000 526,795,000 21.95

(a) Among those shares, 504,000,000 shares were pledged to the bonds
issued to China Life Trustees Limited.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTEREST IN A COMPETING

The controlling shareholders of our Company and their associates
do not engage in any other business which may compete, directly
or indirectly, with the business of our Group.

PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of an interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2011.

PURCHASE, SALE OF REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED
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OTHER INFORMATION
H A&+t

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’
DEALING

SHARE

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct on Directors’
Securities Transactions (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standards set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listing Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the requirements set out in the Securities
Code throughout the six months ended 30 June 2011.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the period with all the
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, and with most of the
Recommended Best Practices.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 May 2010, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted and approved by their then shareholders of the Company
for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date. Since
the adoption date, the Board may, at its discretion, grant share
options to any eligible person to subscribe for the shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions as stipulated in the
Scheme. No share options were granted during the period since
adoption.

REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS

The Company’s Audit Committee has reviewed the suitability of
the accounting policies adopted by the Group and the unaudited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2011.

By order of the Board
Lam Lung On

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 August 2011
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT f58A

Six months ended 30 June 2011 #ZE—ZF——4#,XH=+HILAA

meWER

For the six months
ended 30 June
BEZX<A=t+HIEAXEA

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FTF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b ARET T ARBTT
REVENUE KA 3 766,271 2,043,877
Cost of sales SHE RS (429,919) (1,034,665)
Gross profit EF 336,352 1,009,212
Other income and gains E A A W g 3 76,778 10,683
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ry SHA AR (49,654) (29,178)
Administrative expenses TE R (85,016) (48,019)
Other expenses HAthpa (6,919) (544)
Fair value gains on WEMER R EWRE
investment properties 491,320 86,078
Finance costs BEMRK 4 (73,951) (2,139)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A1 A 78 5 688,910 1,026,093
Income tax expense S X 6 (277,634) (505,216)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD B FH 411,276 520,877
Attributable to: AT & 77 (L -
Owners of the Company ZAN/NETE ¥ = DN 373,101 520,666
Non-controlling interests e R 38,175 211
411,276 520,877
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ZAARERIFEA
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF EBiEEREF
THE COMPANY 8
— Basic (RMB cents per share) —EXR(BBRARES) 15.55 21.69
— Diluted (RMB cents per share) —EE(ERARES) 15.55 21.69
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BG4 2 AlE &

Six months ended 30 June 2011 Bz —F——4#,XHA=+HILMHA

For the six months
ended 30 June
BEZX<A=1+HIEAXEA

2011 2010
—E——F =
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Profit for the period EAA ) 411,276 520,877
Exchange differences on BINETBHRE

translation of foreign operations MEH =5 75,722 9,574
Total comprehensive A2 E k=g

income for the period 486,998 530,451
Attributable to: LA %75 (R -

Owners of the Company RARHEEA 448,823 530,240

Non-controlling interests e AR M 38,175 211

486,998 530,451
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BSR4 & BS it &

30June 2011 ZF——FXA=1H

30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—=E——F —EEF
ANA=tH +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (T Z)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s ARET ARBTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BERERE 9 200,095 181,388
Investment properties REME 10 3,718,153 2,890,747
Prepaid land lease payments ALt E " 448,530 452,730
Deferred tax assets BEBIREE 201,027 186,418
Total non-current assets EMENEEERE 4,567,805 3,711,283
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepaid land lease payments Bt E 1" 895,098 559,955
Properties under development EEME 6,742,429 3,595,735
Completed properties held for sale FEHERENRIME 1,511,620 484,369
Prepayments for acquisition of land W B8 + s FE S F0E 1,165,023 2,781,641
Prepayments, deposits and B Zek
other receivables H it et k1B 624,516 675,165
Prepaid corporate income tax TERT R EFTIS 42,103 14,389
Prepaid land appreciation tax TR IR E R 75,174 37,386
Restricted cash HREIRE 40,858 13,223
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBFLSZEY 1,909,444 2,719,446
Total current assets MEEELR 13,006,265 10,881,309
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Receipts in advance TEUWRIR 3,348,050 1,910,434
Trade payables Z ZERN A 12 1,197,921 914,147
Other payables and accruals H fth ST R IE R fEET B 783,906 384,138
Interest-bearing bank and FFERITERK
other borrowings HifgE 13 1,034,897 1,038,023
Derivative financial liabilities PTEESmAE 14 4,418 -
Tax payable FERTFRIR 427,207 460,067
Provision for land appreciation tax TR E TR 857,592 776,741
Total current liabilities MENE B 7,653,991 5,483,550
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued) B4 4 Bt & (&)

30June 2011 —=F——FA=1H

30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
ANB=tH +=—A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEXR) (= Z)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B sE ARET AREFTT
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFHE 5,352,274 5,397,759
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERARBARS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 9,920,079 9,109,042
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and FTEIRITER R
other borrowings HinfEE 13 4,169,984 3,741,747
Deferred tax liabilities BRI EE 663,462 543,266
Total non-current liabilities EmBaEERE 4,833,446 4,285,013
Net assets BEFEE 5,086,633 4,824,029
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to AATEEAELER
owners of the Company
Issued capital 2 EITIRA 15 211,528 211,528
Reserves 5 4,580,305 4,131,482
Proposed final dividend Fok R B - 224,394
4,791,833 4,567,404
Non-controlling interests IR 294,800 256,625
Total equity TEmBRE 5,086,633 4,824,029
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY B AR 28R

Six months ended 30 June 2011 EZE—-F

77&/\/‘%’:‘/’5&/\1@/@

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARABEAER
Statutory Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  Share surplus fluctuation ~ Other Retained final controlling ~ Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve reserve  profits dividend  Total interests  equity
EE HE B
BERE ROEE BHEE R9GE SURE REAR AERE S FERER ERHE
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR
(Unaudited) (7&%7)
At 1 January 2011 R201E1518 211,528 1,292,181 55935 88,629  (16,328) 2,711,065 224,394 4,567,404 256,625 4,824,029
Profit for the period B - - - - - 30 - 373101 38175 411,276
Other comprehensive income BREM2EYE -
for the period:
Exchange difference on translation  /§5hERAE
of foreign operations LEREE - - - 152 - - - 152 - 152
Total comprehensive income BnEENREE
for the period - - - 1512 - 30 - M8823 38175 486,998
Final 2010 dividend declared TR010ERSRS - - - - - - (224394) (224,394) - (224394
At 30 June 2011 2011464308 211528 1,292,181 55935 164,351  (16,328) 3,084,166 - 4,791,833 294,800 5,086,633
(Unaudited) (REE7)
At 1 January 2010 201081817 211528 1516575 55935 31424 (16328) 1,747,464 158,646 3,705,244 124173 3829417
Profit for the period HnFE - - - - - 520,666 - 520,666 A1 50877
Other comprehensive income BrEmEENE -
for the period:
Exchange difference on translation ;250 £ 514
of foreign operations LERER - - - 9574 - - - 9574 - 9574
Total comprehensive income Bhrabaas
for the period - - - 9,574 - 520,666 - 530,240 211 530,451
Final 2009 dividend declared ER009FRERE = - - - - - (158,646) (158,646) - (158,646)
At 30 June 2010 12010564308 211,528 1516575 55935 40998  (16,328) 2,268,130 - 4,076,838 124,384 4,201,222
YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED ~ INTERIM REPORT 2011
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS BB4EEHERER

Six months ended 30 June 2011 Bz —F——4#,XHA=+HILMHA

For the six months
ended 30 June
BZEANA=1+HLAKEAR

2011 2010
—E——F =
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (CREEEZ)
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%ETR AR¥ETT
Net cash flows used in KEEBFTARSRE TR
operating activities (1,154,738) (876,623)
Net cash flows used in KREEBFARSREFRE
investing activities (156,653) (35,129)
Net cash flows from MEEHEENHE S REFHE
financing activities 425,667 5,344
Net decrease in cash and ReERBSEER D FHE
cash equivalents (885,724) (906,408)
Cash and cash equivalents at HBE RESEFEY
beginning of period 2,719,446 1,570,026
Effect of foreign exchange rate MRS B 855
changes, net 75,722 9,574
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT HIABRERRESZEY
END OF PERIOD 1,909,444 673,192
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReRBEEEYEHRIW
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances R e RIRTTAER 1,909,444 673,192
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NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HRBF #& & R M 5

30June 2011 ZF——FXA=1H

SIBR

H Z=2011%6830H (-~ 8 B Z & 8
AT EBUBERDRERSSFE
BT BB ERTER])E345% [ BRI 5

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1.

The condensed consolidated interim financial information for
the six months ended 30 June 2011 is prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting”. The accounting policies and basis WE MRS - RATHEREFTR
of preparation adopted in the preparation of the interim REAN Z BA TS MRk R B IRER M 2 R ]
financial information are the same as those used in the annual REiEaT BB MR EERI(T B EM
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010, BWEREN ] TEEEEGEL R
except in relation to the following new and revised Hong BRI - RN BT 75 A R T AN
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”, which also SHREMEHRLE  HEZEHZS
include HKASs and Interpretations) that affect the Group 20108 12 A3B I E 2 FEV B R
and are adopted for the first time for the current period’s FETERMERR -

financial statements:

BEUBRE BIEBMBRSED

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1

First-time Adoption of ERIE 155 15 H AR EE
Hong Kong Financial Reporting CHEN HBHEER -8 X
Standards — Limited Exemption RNE SRR B BB %
from Comparative HKFRS 7 WERRE 7R
Disclosures for First-time Adopters HEEHBERAE
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures BAGHER FErRE
F24%5;
(#&1&3])
HKAS 32 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 32 EAEGHED BRI ABGERE2R
Financial Instruments: F325% 2@ TA: ZH—-H#K
Presentation — Classification of EHEN byl
Rights Issues
HK(FRIC)-Int 14 Amendments to HK(FRIC)-Int 14 B (ER EHESHE TR
Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum BsmE REBZEY)-RE
Funding Requirement REBZEE) FUFANRE
—RBES FEEX
EHEN
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with G HRAT AL HEHEE
Equity Instruments BsmE
REZEE)
—2EF195%

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED INTERIM REPORT 2011
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Apart from the above, the Group has also adopted
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010* issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants which sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily with a view
to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording.

* Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 contain amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 3, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 27, HKAS 34 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
13.

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact
of HKFRS 3, HKAS 1, and HKAS 27, the adoption of the
above new and revised HKFRSs has no material impact on
the accounting policies of the Group and the methods of
computation in the Group’s interim financial information.

HKFRS 3 Business Combination: Clarifies that the
amendments to HKFRS 7, HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 that
eliminate the exemption for contingent consideration do not
apply to contingent consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates precede the application
of HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendments limit the measurement choice of
non-controlling interests at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets to components
of non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interest and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation. Other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
basis is required by another HKFRS.

The amendments also added explicit guidance to clarify
the accounting treatment for non-replaced and voluntarily
replaced share-based payment awards.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies that an
analysis of other comprehensive income for each component
of equity can be presented either in the statement of changes
in equity or in the notes to the financial statements.

“E2——FhlRE BMNEEROGBRQF
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30June 2011 —=F——FA=1H
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements:
Clarifies that the consequential amendments from HKAS 27
(as revised in 2008) made to HKAS 21, HKAS 28 and HKAS 31
shall be applied prospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009 or earlier if HKAS 27 is applied earlier.

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Statements: The amendment
requires additional disclosures for fair values and changes
in classification of financial assets. The Group has illustrated
those amendments in note 16.

The Group has not yet adopted any other standards,
interpretation or amendments that have been issued but
are not yet effective.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
five reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the property development segment engages in the
development and sale of properties;

(b) the property investment segment invests in properties
for their rental income potential and/or for capital
appreciation;

(c) the property management segment engages in the
provision of management services to properties;

(d) thehotel operation segment engages in the development
and operation of hotels; and

(e) the others segment comprises corporate income and
expense items.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax
from continuing operations. The adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax from continuing operations is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations
except that interest income and finance costs are excluded
from such measurement.

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HRBF #& & R M 5

30June 2011 ZF——FXA=1H

SRR @)
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NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HA B #& & R M 5

30June 2011 —F——FA=+H

2. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 2. &&oIER @)

(Continued)

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference DEEHERBRELD2EMNE =TT
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at ERHEBRUERBITMERS °

the then prevailing market prices.

During the six months ended 30 June 2011 and 2010, no HZE20114F 20106 A30H LE/NEA
revenue from transactions with a single external customer B WERKBEHE-IILELRH
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue. BYU A S AR SR B A 4R FE #9910 %3k
BAE o
(Unaudited) (REEE%)
Six months ended 30 June 2011 BZE201156A30R L/ EA
Property  Property  Property Hotel
development investment management operation Others Total

NEER  NREE WRER  EELE At aE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETRE ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TrR

Segment revenue: ABEA

Sales to external BRI
customers eSS 724,344 19,827 22,100 - - 766,271
Other revenue HAdA 1,942 26 3,898 - 2,194 8,060
Total REk 726,286 19,853 25,998 - 2,194 774,331
Segment results DEREE 216,108 525,565 207 (15) 12,797 754,662
Reconciliation: HEE -
Interest income EVON 8,199
Finance costs RAMA (73,951)
Profit before tax BRI 688,910
Income tax expense FEHEAX (277,634)
Profit for the period HIARE 411,276
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30 June 2011 —ZF—

OPERATING SEGMENT

(Continued)

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HRBF #& & R M 5

—#FAXA=T1H

INFORMATION 2. & oIER @)

(Unaudited) (RigEEIZ)
Six months ended 30 June 2010 HZ=2010%F6A3081F~@EAH
Property Property Property Hotel
development  investment management  operation Others Total
MERE  MERE  WEEE  BELE Hft k)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®ETT ARETT
Segment revenue: AHEA
Sales to external BRSNS
customers {ELRHESR 2,012,761 17,026 14,090 - - 2,043,877
Other revenue HelA 3,121 - 76 1 2,283 5,481
Total k] 2,015,882 17,026 14,166 1 2,283 2,049,358
Segment results PHEE 930,326 95,963 1,465 (80) (4,644) 1,023,030
Reconciliation: i
Interest income FEUWA 5,202
Finance costs BEKE (2,139)
Profit before tax BRI 1,026,093
Income tax expense FrigRifY (505,216)
Profit for the period BRI 520,877
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NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HA B #& & R 5

30June 2011 —ZF——FXA=1H

3. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 3. WA » Eft gk A R W&

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents WANMRAREENEETE  BHAY
the gross proceeds, net of business tax, from the sale of FHENREENBMERIELSE -
properties; gross rental income, net of business tax, received WEYEND W R E WA E R E
and receivable from investment properties and property RS WA R B UK FE YRR & T &
management fee income, net of business tax, received and MEERBRA -

receivable during the period.

An analysis for the Group's revenue, other income and gains REBHWA - HMRA RS
is as follows: WEE T -

For the six months
ended 30 June
BZEANA=1+HLAEAR

2011 2010
—=E——F —E-FF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REEEIZ)
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
Revenue WA
Sales of properties MEHE 724,344 2,012,761
Rental income MEBA 19,827 17,026
Property management fees MESIEER 22,100 14,090
766,271 2,043,877
Other income and gains H A A R Wz
Bank interest income RITHI B A 8,199 5,202
Rental income from KBRS YR
properties held for sale HEB WA 1,300 1,168
Gain on disposal of HERE YW
investment properties 25,449 -
Others EHAh, 41,830 4,313
76,778 10,683
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4. FINANCE COSTS

4.

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HRBF #& & R M 5

30June 2011 ZF——FXA=1H

L2
For the six months
ended 30 June

BEANA=TRILAEAR

2011 2010
=E——fF —T-ZF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REEEZ)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Interest on bank loans wholly ARAFAZTEEEDN
repayable within five years IRITEFAFE 109,931 53,498
Interest on bank loans wholly ARAFEEEEN
repayable beyond five years RITEFAFIE 4,689 10,156
Interest on other loans EEFRAFIE 134,583 -
Total interest expense on TRARER B DR
financial liabilities not at fair CRAENT R LEsE
value through profit or loss 249,203 63,654
Less: Interest capitalised B BRMEFLE (175,252) (61,515)
73,951 2,139
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 5. BRB{ATRIE

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

S B0 BR B AT A R kR (G

AVATEIBEEH

For the six months
ended 30 June

BEANA=TRILAEAR

2011 2010
—EB——fF —E-TF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REEEZ)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFTT
Cost of properties sold EEWEKA 412,092 1,023,824
Depreciation e 2,680 2,626
Amortisation of prepaid TR = Hh 70 & 8 8
land lease payments 9,349 5,323
Gain on disposal of SR E Y W a
investment properties (25,449) —
Fair value loss on derivative PTESRAEN AR BEREE
financial liabilities 3,862 -
Loss on disposal of items of HEME - BB REREDN
property, plant and [E5 18 F R
equipment, net 117 380

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION R HA B #& & R 5

30June 2011 —ZF——FA=1H

6. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the six months ended 30 June 2011 (six
months ended 30 June 2010: Nil). The income tax for the
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China is calculated at the
applicable tax rates on the taxable profits for the six months
ended 30 June 2011.

An analysis of the income tax charges for the period is as

6. FTEHRAX

A ANEBREZ2011F6H308 1
NE AR BB ABEE TR
B (R E201056 A30R IE/AE A :
M) WM ERESFEHIELBE -
AN ENE ol Sy RN ol T )
RIEE Z=2011F6H308 1E/5 8 A K
ERFA IR BB EAE -

REPTISTH SR AT -

follows:
For the six months
ended 30 June
BEZX<A=1tHIEAXEA
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (REEHER)
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT
Current: BPEA :
PRC corporate income tax R RIS 57,695 190,863
PRC land appreciation tax R+ i (E R 114,352 347,699
172,047 538,562
Deferred: PRI :
Current period BNER 105,587 (33,346)
Total tax charge for the period BANTIA S HAERE 277,634 505,216

7. DIVIDEND

The directors did not propose to declare an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2011 (six months ended
30 June 2010: Nil).

“E2——FhlRE BMNEEROGBRQF
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EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for
the period ended 30 June 2011 is based on the profit for
the period attributable to equity holders of the Company
of RMB373,101,000 (six months ended 30 June 2010:
RMB520,666,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the period ended 30 June
2011 of 2,400,000,000 (six months ended 30 June 2010:
2,400,000,000).

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amount presented for the period ended 30 June 2011 in
respect of a dilution as the impact of the warrants outstanding
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share
amount presented. No adjustment has been made to the
basic earnings per share amount for the period ended 30 June
2010 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during that period.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the six months ended 30 June 2011, the Group
acquired and disposed of property, plant and equipment
of RMB22,704,000 (six months ended 30 June 2010:
RMB7,508,000) and RMB1,317,000 (six months ended 30
June 2010: RMB1,017,000), respectively.

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED

8.

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION R HRBF #& & R M 5

30June 2011 ZF——FA=1H

ARmAERFREAEGE
2 F

HZE20119F6A30H IF MM &R E
ABFECREIIEAQNRERESE AR
HEARF A R #373,101,0007T (#
£2010F6A30B LA : ARK
520,666,0007T ) & # £201146 430
BIEHAERTEBRMNEFESH
2,400,000,0008%(#; 2201056 A308 1
7~ME& A : 2,400,000,0000%) 51 -

BN EARITEORREZINTEHE
NMEREAZNSEALEREHR
R EBEZ2011F6A308 1t
HEH 2N BREARRFIIEEEA
o RN AEENB E20106F6A30
AIEHR AR EE A B HITEEES
LB MU ERZARELERE
AR EERE

HZE2011%F6830H 1L/~ 18 B 8/ -
AEERBERLEDE  BE KR
&> plliE AR #22,704,0007L( & &=
2010F6 A30R L/~ @ A AR
7,508,000t ) & A K #1,317,0007T
(B Z201056A30B IENAA - AR
#1,017,0007C) °

INTERIM REPORT 2011

53



54

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HABF #& & R 5

30June 2011 —ZF——FXA=1H

10. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

10. BREWE

Group REE
Under
Completed construction Total
E%T w2 et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETL ARMTI ARET:
Carrying amount at R2011F1 1B
1 January 2011 BREE 2,483,400 407,347 2,890,747
Additions NE S 183,206 183,206
Transfer from completed ERAREHEN
properties held for RIMEEEME
sale/properties under
development 53,168 149,955 203,123
Disposals k= (50,243) - (50,243)
Net gains from fair N ERARBN T
value adjustments 28,075 463,245 491,320
Carrying amount at 7201196 HA30HH)
30 June 2011 BREE 2,514,400 1,203,753 3,718,153

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 30 June
2011 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, on an open market, existing use
basis. The Group’s investment properties under construction
were measured at cost until such time as fair value can be

REBNEENECHBIEERE
B EMEERITERAFN2011F
6A30B R AHMBGRITERERS
e REENERREWERBAG

B HERRUEETAAMBENTE

determined reliably or construction is completed. FELRAIL -
11. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS M. BN TAE
Group
rEE
RMB'000
AREFT
Carrying amount at R201141 51 BERAE
1 January 2011 1,012,685
Additions during the period HRNRNE 1,943,013
Amortised during the period F (9,349)
Transferred to properties ERIEEYE
under development (1,602,721)
Carrying amount at 7201146 A30H REE
30 June 2011 1,343,628
Current portion BIERER 5> (895,098)
Non-current portion FERNERER 448,530
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NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HRBF #& & R M 5

30June 2011 ZF——FXA=1H

11. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

(Continued)

Included in the Group’s non-current balance of prepaid
land lease payments is a parcel of land held for a property
development project in the amount of RMB448,530,000 as
at 30 June 2011 (31 December 2010: RMB452,730,000) for
which the Group has experienced delays in commencing
construction due to the uncertainty over the plot ratio of
the land. As of the date of this interim financial information,
the Group has begun the application process for the permits
required to commence construction of the relevant project,
and the Group has not received any warning notice or been
subject to any penalties in the nature of idle land fees for
its delay in commencing construction from the local land
bureau. As the Group has begun the application process for
the permits required for the commencement of construction
of the relevant project in accordance with the normal
procedures, the directors of the Company consider that no
provision for idle land fees or land forfeiture is required for

M. BN HHHEE @

AEBMIEN L /9 FERIHR 4 82
BE-EBEVNERTEEN I
R2011F6A30E M A AR K
448,530,0007C(2010512 8318 = A
R #452,730,0007C) * Mz LtHAOR
BEHTET  ERAEENETIE
B HEATHUBERNBEH A&
BEEHBEFEABBEEEI®NT
Al RE v i AN S B 4 R RE AR e T i U
B3 77 1 1 2B PT &9 £ 1] £ 45 38 A0 sk 4
ERRER L HEEEEENIIE -
AR AEBEREEERZFMABHE
THERBEEMETIBENEE
FE MARANEERAE BHEAFP
By EENBBROERBN LS
RIFEBNER &SRR R AT L HDET IR B A =
BB B ek R UR R B o

the land included in the non-current balance of prepaid
land lease payments up to the date of this interim financial

information.

12. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

12. EZENFE

REZZEH  ReEHRERED
B HRNFIBNRE DT -

Group
rEE
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2011 2010

R=8——% R-T-TF
AA=tH t-A=+-A

Due within 1 year or on demand
Due within 1 to 2 years

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (f&E=Z)

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T AREFIT

1FEARNNBREREES 514,136 679,738
683,785 234,409

1,197,921 914,147

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and unsecured.

BIRNFRBARTHEREER -
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NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HA B #& & R 5

30June 2011 —ZF——FXA=1H

13. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

13. FTRRITERR

HtufE &

Group
rEE
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
R=B——F RZZE—TF
ARA=+H +TZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RER) (&&EZ)
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AREFTT
Analysed into: AITEAT :
Bank loans repayable: RIERBITERNEAR -
Within one year or on demand PIFEREER 1,034,897 1,038,023
In the second year RE2F 515,500 294,400
In the third to fifth years, MNEIFEESEF
inclusive (BIEEREMF) 1,315,500 1,022,000
Beyond five years S 1& 265,000 305,000
3,130,897 2,659,423
Other loans repayable: AEBHMEENHR
In the third to fifth years, REEIFEESF
inclusive (BIEEEMS) 2,073,984 2,120,347
5,204,881 4,779,770
Current portion BNERER 5> 1,034,897 1,038,023
Non-current portion FERNERER 4,169,984 3,741,747
5,204,881 4,779,770
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NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HRBF #& & R M 5

30 June 2011 —ZF—

—#FAXA=1H

13. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

(a)

(b)

At 30 June 2011, certain of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings are secured or guaranteed by:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the pledge of the Group’s properties under
development with an aggregate carrying value at
the end of the reporting period of approximately
RMB2,881,385,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB2,979,887,000);

the pledge of the Group’s investment properties
with an aggregate carrying value at the end
of the reporting period of approximately
RMB2,999,200,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB2,171,118,000);

the pledge of the Group’s prepaid land lease
payments with an aggregate carrying value at
the end of the reporting period of approximately
RMB1,598,575,000 (31 December 2010: Nil);

the pledge of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with an aggregate carrying value at
the end of the reporting period of approximately
RMB158,892,000 (31 December 2010: Nil);

corporate guarantees executed by certain
subsidiaries of the Group to the extent of
RMB2,620,000,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB879,000,000);

joint and several personal guarantees executed
by Mr. Lam Lung On (“Mr. Lam”) and Ms. Kwok
Ying Lan (“Ms. Kwok"), directors of the Company,
to the extent of RMB980,772,000 (31 December
2010: RMB1,299,979,000); and

the pledge of an aggregate 504,000,000 shares
in the Company held by Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok.

The Group’s bank and other borrowings with carrying
amounts of RMB3,130,897,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB2,659,423,000), RMB830,772,000 (31 December
2010: RMB849,979,000) and RMB1,243,212,000 (31
December 2010: RMB1,270,368,000) are denominated
in RMB, Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars,
respectively.

13. 5 RRITERRHEMBEE

(%)

(b)

201146 A308 - AEEME
TRITERXREMEETIHIAT
FREAER

2,979,887,000
KM

(i) AEBRHKEHME L
B BREEARE
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F12A318: A
2,171,118,0007T )
XM
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NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HA B #& & R 5

30June 2011 —ZF——FXA=1H

14. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

14. TEsmEE

Group

£33
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
R=T——F RZZE—FTF
ANB=tH +=—A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (&= Z)
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Warrants RIS 4,418 =

During the period, the Company issued 72,000,000 warrants
at a price of HK$0.01 per warrant to certain independent
third parties pursuant to a warrant placing agreement dated
27 April 2011. Each warrant carries the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share at a price of HK$2.82 per share for a
period of 12 months commencing from the date of issue.

A AoRRE B R2011F48
7AZRBEELERH  HEMHA
BAEF0OIBTRETELFE =7 %
1772,000,0001n B B HERE © F 10 B X
REFED M AN B 31T A B R 1218
RHHERNREFR2.82BTRE KT

AR -
15. SHARE CAPITAL 15. B4
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
R-FT——F RZE—TF
NA=+H +=-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REHFX) (EEZ)
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBT T
Authorised VEIE
100,000,000,000 shares of 100,000,000,0004%
HK$0.1 each FRLE(EO. 178 THIAS 8,813,679 8,813,679
Issued and fully paid EEITRER
2,400,000,000 shares of 2,400,000,000/% & R%
HK$0.1 each E{E0. 15T a7 211,528 211,528
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NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HRBF #& & R M 5

30June 2011 ZF——FXA=1H

16. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 16. RRERQIAERBR
HIERARCHY
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments 20119 6A30H Kk20106F12A318
as at 30 June 2011 and 31 December 2010 are approximate rEFEemTANREEREARE
to their fair values. BE -
The Group uses fair values measured based on valuation AEBEERBBREMIANOAR
techniques for which any inputs which have a significant B At 8 HERNYMCHRARER
effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly BAREBMARABEI A EEN
or indirectly for determining and disclosing the fair value MEHER 2 (EETE - 201156 A
of financial instruments. As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s 308 AEESRTA(BETESR
financial instruments which comprise derivative financial TR)DERARENE  WEETRSE
instruments were measured at fair value and were determined 2BERTIA -
as level 2 financial instruments.
The Group did not have any financial assets measured at fair N E& B R201146H30H 2010412
value as at 30 June 2011 and 31 December 2010. A31BEEEZA R BT ERE A

BEE ©

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at REBMPR2010F12 A31 AW EE(TIZ
fair value as at 31 December 2010. AREFENEHEE -

17. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 17. REHELZH

(@) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 10)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to twenty
years. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants to pay security deposits and to provide
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At 30 June 2011, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants falling due as follows:

(a) ERHHEA

REERELEHELHEHEE
BEWE(H:E10) BERET
BN TIE200 1T F - 2 SHE
R — AR IR B SEF A AR
B WIREE B TIRE AR
e -

R20114%6 4308 © AEERIE
HEEFA A BTS2 R R 51 FH 2 A B 27
AT R A TR T R Uk ) R
RS ERENT

Group

AEH
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
R-B——F R_ZE—FF
ANA=+tH +=—A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (&= Z)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFT
Within one year 156 21,687 37,328

YUZHOU PROPERTIES COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HA B #& & R 5

30June 2011 —ZF——FXA=1H

17. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.

At 30 June 2011, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

KEHEZHE@

(b) 1EREFEA

REERELLCHELHARE
FTHAEYWE - MENHARET
BN F1E3FETRE o

R2011F6A30H » A&EBIRE
T3 FE R A B R A S AT U
EHEMENNARKEHRSE
B

Group
£33
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2011 2010

R=-T——F R-_ZT—ZTF
NA=+H +=-A=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZR) (&%)

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETIT

Within one year 1R 3,272 4,793
In the second to fifth years, 2ZES5ER (BIEEEMRE)

inclusive 1,743 3,020

5,015 7,813
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NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HRBF #& & R M 5

30June 2011 ZF——FXA=1H

18. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 18. EAEIE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the REBRHERRERFEABEZA
end of the reporting period: RAEEWT
Group
rEH
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2011 2010

R=8——% R-T-TF
AA=tH +-A=t-A

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (f&E=Z)
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBETT

Contracted, but not provided for: EaT#MEARBE :

Investment properties under TR BRI
construction and properties
under development 1,496,657 1,393,969
Acquisition of land use rights Ut B = Hb {5 F 4 110,700 1,698,000
1,607,357 3,091,969
19. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 19. BIBHRR
The Group had the following financial guarantees as at the N &R E P 5 A ) 4 SR O BA TS PR AR
end of the reporting period: UM
Group
rEE
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
R=B——F RZE—TF
AA=tH +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (1%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Guarantees in respect of RAEEMENETER
the mortgage facilities BERERBEFIRMEER
provided to certain purchasers
of the Group's properties 3,375,502 3,205,720
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19. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of the mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks to certain purchasers of the Group’s properties.
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default on
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals
together with the accrued interest and penalties owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were
pledged to the banks as security on the mortgage loans.
Upon default on mortgage payments by these purchasers,
the banks are entitled to take over the legal titles and can
realise the pledged properties through open auction. The
Group is obliged to repay the banks for the shortfall if the
proceeds from the auction of the properties cannot cover the
outstanding mortgage principals together with the accrued
interest and penalties.

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of grant
of the relevant mortgage loans, and ends upon the earlier
of (i) the issuance of real estate ownership certificates to the
purchasers, which will generally be available within one to
two years after the purchasers take possession of the relevant
properties; and (ii) the settlement of mortgage loans between
the mortgage banks and the purchasers.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of
the guarantees is not significant, and in the case of default
on payments, the net realisable value of the related properties
can cover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage
principals together with the accrued interest and penalties.
Therefore, no provision for the guarantees has been made
in the financial statements.

“E2——FhlRE BMNEEROGBRQF

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HA B #& & R 5

30June 2011 —F——FA=+H

19. B ER @

RIREREAERE - REFERE TR
TRAEEMENE TERR LN
BEREHRER - REBEFRG - H
ZEBRARERRBRIEA - AIAE
EREEEENERRARITHARE
BIBA R R B R EK o

REBAELZE BRAMECIERES
ERMEREBIRTRT - WRFER
REEEERIBFIA - AIIRITHEREW
EERERE LB BAFBEHIRK
YK - WYERBMERERER
MAREENRB RS EREFFER
R AIREBEABERRTEED
EEH e

AEENEFRMAREEBIRIBERN
FItE - EATEETNRPEFRSLL:
(WRERELFHEMMBEE(FIHE
ERE-—RNERESEBRYMER
TE2FREL) - RS BIRBIRTTE
BRZHERIZBER -

ARAEFRRAFERNAIAEL
TEX - WEFKKREINHEA - HE
YR A B IR FE B A EE I RIRE
A BRI RFHERER - Bt B
BMR AL BAZERRIEHEAE -



NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HRBF #& & R M 5

30June 2011 ZF——FXA=1H

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in this interim financial information, the
Group had the following material transactions with
related parties during the period.

20. BEARRS

(a) BEARDHMPBEREME D
MEINH X Z R &R - BIRAR
SEHEEETHEARZRZMT

Group
AEH
For the six months
ended 30 June
BZEANA=1+HLAEAR

2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REEEZ)
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREFT
Service fees paid to Xiamen I FEPIMIEEE
Zongheng Group BEZERARAR
Communication ([tEmEER AR
Development Co., Ltd BRGE
("Zongheng Communication
Development Co."”) 700 443

The service fees were incurred for the design,
installation and testing of intelligence systems provided
by Zongheng Communication Development Co. in
relation to properties held for sale, at rate determined
in accordance with terms and conditions set out in the
contracts entered into between the relevant parties.
Zongheng Communication Development Co. is a
company controlled by Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok.

At the end of the reporting period, certain
bank and other borrowings of the Group in the
amount of RMB980,772,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB1,299,979,000) were guaranteed by Mr. Lam
and Ms. Kwok, directors of the Company, and in the
amount of RMB830,772,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB849,979,000) were secured by share charge over
504,000,000 (31 December 2010: 504,000,000) shares
in the Company held by Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok.

ZRIEE B RBEER A BTRISIE
HEMERHDERSORT  BK
RRARER REEESHFEITNA
PR PR RO 5K S R EEE o ME TR B
EERDA BMEE R LT ES -

(b) R¥mEHMLERE » ARAE
EMEERBLLTARERN
ETRTERREMEBEAR
#980,772,0007C (2010127
318 : AR#1,299,979,0007T)
EHER HPF ARE
830,772,0007t (2010912 A
318 : AR#849,979,0007T)
MHEERBLLABZTEARR
7)504,000,000% (2010412 A
31H : 504,000,000/%) AR
IR o
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NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION H HA B #& & R 5

30June 2011 —ZF——FXA=1H

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

20 EEFRRZ @)

() AEEXTEEEEAEN

#r

Group
REE

For the six months
ended 30 June
BEASA=+THLAEAR

2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNEF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (RieE=R)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFT
Short term employee HEREREF
benefits 3,718 2,559
Retirement benefit RREFIFT I K
scheme contributions 29 29
Total compensation paid to T EEIEE A 8 #F A
key management
personnel 3,747 2,588

“E2——FhlRE BMNEEROGBRQF



Principal administration and management center in the PRC

PEEETHRRERFL

39 West Hubin Road
Xiamen Fujian
People’s Republic of China

I AR
rBEEM
W ETEEE395%

Principal place of business in Hong Kong
BERTEEXR MU

Units 4905-06, 49th Floor
The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central
Central Hong Kong

EHTIE
SR AIEHOH:
IR

491£4905-06

www.xmyuzhou.com.cn
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